April 17, 2015

The Honorable P. Michael McKinley
U.S. Ambassador to Afghanistan

The Honorable Christine E. Wormuth
Under Secretary of Defense for Policy

General John F. Campbell, Jr.
Commander, U.S. Forces-Afghanistan and
Commander, Resolute Support

Mr. William Hammink
USAID Mission Director for Afghanistan

Dear Gentlemen and Madam:

I am writing to inquire about the status of the U.S. government'’s efforts to develop a reliable and
sustainable source of electric power for Kandahar City after September 30, 2015.1 SIGAR inquired
about a similar matter in June 2014 and noted its concerns with the inadequate response provided
at that time.2

During a recent visit to Afghanistan in February 2015, my staff and | discussed this subject with
Department of Defense, Department of State, and U.S. Agency for International Development
(USAID) officials. We received an update on the installation of an additional turbine for the Kajaki
Dam Unit 2 Project.3 We also heard about plans to end the Kandahar Bridging Solution by
September 30, 2015, including discussion of whether a reliable source of electric power would be
available if the new turbine is not operational by March 2016.4 The discussions left many of our
questions unanswered, and we are unconvinced that there are plans in place to ensure there is a
reliable and sustainable power source for this strategically important city.

Given the necessity of electric power to Kandahar City’s economic development and stability, it is
important that a solution be successfully implemented by September 30, 2015, or potentially
thousands of homes and businesses will no longer have access to a reliable source of electricity.
This could dampen economic growth and negate some of the U.S. government’s counterinsurgency
and reconstruction efforts in a region that has been prone to instability.

1 Kandahar City, the spiritual birthplace of the Taliban insurgency, is Afghanistan’s second largest city and the center for
education, healthcare, manufacturing, and transportation in southern Afghanistan.

2 SIGAR 14-87-SP, Inquiry Letter: Kandahar Bridging Solution, July 30, 2014.

3 The installation of the turbine generator is part of USAID’s Kandahar Helmand Power Project, which aims to increase the
supply, quantity, and distribution of electrical power. This project is part of a broader effort under the U.S.-funded
Afghanistan Infrastructure Fund to improve the Southeast Power System and connect it with other electrical grids in the
country.

4 The Kandahar Bridging Solution is a U.S.-funded effort that has provided fuel for two 10-megawatt diesel generators since
2011 and has served as a temporary electricity solution to Kandahar City.
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To help SIGAR understand how the United States intends to ensure electrical power for Kandahar
City, please provide responses to the following questions, with supporting documentation:

1. Will the United States continue to fund the Kandahar Bridging Solution after September
30, 20157 If so, please provide an updated description of those plans, including the
amount of fuel and funding needed, by month, for the estimated duration of this
extended effort.

2. Will the installation of the additional turbine for Kajaki Dam Unit 2 be completed and
operational by March 20167

a. If not, please provide the revised timelines for the additional turbine to be
installed and operational.

3. USAID officials in Afghanistan told SIGAR that USAID intends to solicit bids within the next
few months on a contract for a solar power system. Does the United States have plans to
support the construction of a solar power system to generate electricity for Kandahar
City? If so, please answer the following;:

a. Has a feasibility study or assessment evaluating the viability of a solar power
system to generate electricity for Kandahar City been conducted since the May
2010 study administered by USAID’s Afghanistan Clean Energy Program?5 If so,
please provide copies of any studies or assessments, including system
specifications (e.g., array size, total energy generation capacity, total acreage
required) and life cycle cost information (e.g., capital costs, operation and
maintenance costs, replacement costs, other costs).

b. What sites in or near Kandahar City are being considered as potential locations
for this solar power system? Please provide Global Position System or Military
Grid Reference System coordinates and explain the extent to which land
ownership and property rights issues have been resolved for these potential
sites.

c. What will be the source of funding for construction of the solar power system?
Please identify the funding source and the name of the U.S. agency that will
provide and administer these funds.

d. What are the estimated dates for starting and completing construction of this
solar power system? Please explain how the U.S. will monitor the progress of the
project given the security environment in the Kandahar region and the
increasingly limited number of U.S. personnel in Afghanistan.

5 USAID, Afghanistan Clean Energy Program: Kandahar City Utility Interconnected 10MW Photovoltaic Power System
Feasibility Assessment, May 2010.
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e. What Afghan government entities will be responsible for operating, maintaining,
and sustaining this solar power system? To what extent do those entities have
the required financial management and human resources capacity to sustain this
system? Please provide copies of any capacity assessments of responsible
Afghan government entities conducted since January 2013.

4. What other alternatives, if any, are under consideration for ensuring that reliable and
sustainable electric power is provided to Kandahar City? Please provide a detailed
description of these alternatives, including their feasibility, projected costs, and
construction start and completion dates.

| am submitting this request pursuant to my authority under Public Law No. 110-181, as amended,
and the Inspector General Act of 1978, as amended. Please provide the requested information by
May 15, 2015. Should you or your staff have any questions about this request, please contact Mr.
Jack Mitchell, Director of Special Projects, at ||| o

Thank you in advance for your cooperation in this matter. | look forward to your response.
Sincerely,

John F. Sopko
Special Inspector General
for Afghanistan Reconstruction
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